ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
Anchor age, Al aska
Cct ober 25, 2006
10: 08 a. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representati ve Paul Seaton, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Sharon C ssna

MEMBERS ABSENT

Represent ati ve Tom Ander son
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Vic Kohring
Representative Berta Gardner

OTHER LEQ SLATORS PRESENT
Senator Bettye Davis
COW TTEE CALENDAR

USI NG ALASKA' S HEALTHCARE DOLLARS W SELY: M SSI ONS AND MEASURES
REVI EW

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
No previous action to record
W TNESS REGQ STER

KARLEEN JACKSON, Comm ssi oner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: O fered comments regarding the m ssions and
measures revi ew.

STEPHANI E BI RCH, Chi ef

Wnen & Children, Famly Health

Di vi sion of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nformation during t he
presentation and answered questions.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- Oct ober 25, 2006



TAMMY GREEN, Chi ef

Chroni c Di sease

Di vi sion of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nformation during t he
presentation and answered questions.

CRI STY WLLER, Director

Central Ofice

Di vi sion of Behavioral Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nformation during t he
presentation and answered questions.

JERRY FULLER, Project Director

O fice of Program Review

Ofice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded i nformation during t he
presentati on and answered questions.

STEPHANI E WVHEELER, Executive Director

Ofice of Faith Based and Comunity Initiatives

Departnent of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TION  STATEMENT: Provi ded i nformation during t he
presentation and answered questions.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON call ed the House Health, Education and Soci al
Services Standing Committee neeting to order at 10:08:09 AM
Representatives WIson and Seaton were present at the call to
order. Representative Cissna arrived as the neeting was in
progress. Senator Davis was also in attendance.

CHAI R WLSON announced that the only order of business would be
a summary of using Alaska's health care dollars wisely and a
review of the m ssions and neasures of each division.

USI NG ALASKA' S HEALTHCARE DOLLARS W SELY: M SSI ONS AND MEASURES
REVI EW

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- Oct ober 25, 2006



10: 10: 47 AM

KARLEEN JACKSON, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS), began by stating that one of the biggest
chal l enges in healthcare and social service work is balancing
t he conpeting needs of access to care, quality of care, and cost
of care. Today, she said, the focus would be on the m ssions
and neasures that the departnents are required to use in order
to evaluate whether the services being funded are producing
results.

10:12: 18 AM

COM SSI ONER JACKSON noted that all of this relates to the
budget process. At this point, departnents have provided
suggested budgets in to the Ofice of Managenent & Budget (QOVB).
The OMB, she said, is now conpiling a statew de budget which
will then be submtted to a transition team after the 2006
gubernatorial election. It is the transition team she said
that produces the final docunent to be rel eased by Decenber 15,
2006. The final decision will be made by the legislature. The
DHSS, she said, prioritized the budget line-itenms within each

division. This year, there are a total of 98 budget line-itens
for DHSS. These line-itenms were broken into the follow ng
t henes: sustai ning services; conpliance issues; qual ity
assurance; healthy futures. She explained that the “healthy
futures” category was broken into two areas: projects wth
measurabl e results and projects that “show prom se.” There are,

she said, flaws and benefits when prioritizing budget itens.
One benefit is the ability to see the inportant prograns, when

funding is short. However, there may be a low priority item
with denonstrative results, and a high priority item that does
not have results. Therefore, it is not sinply a matter of

funding the first 50 itens.

10: 16: 17 AM

COWMWM SSI ONER  JACKSON, in regard to prevention, posed the
foll ow ng question: How can we prevent future funding [by
funding the types of prograns that ensure |ess substance abuse
and |ower suicide rates]? Anot her “lens” wused to prioritize
items was “making sure that [DHSS] was truly |ooking at
neasurable results.” She opined that Cristy WIler has been

doing “an amazing job” of creating a way to prioritize grantees
and contractors in a way that shows whether the work is
providing the desired results. The federal governnent, she
said, is also “pushing in that direction.”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 3- Oct ober 25, 2006



[Due to technical difficulties, a portion of the audio is
repeat ed. |

10:17: 35 AM

COWMM SSI ONER JACKSON t hen expl ained how to find the OVB M ssions
and Measures web site. Once on the web site, she said, it can
be browsed by agency, overview, or by resource center. She
directed the nenbers’ attention to the agency section pointing
out that from here, various departnents can be reached, and
noted that the mnmissions and neasures of other departnents
affects the DHSS. From the DHSS section, she said, you can
access the “results summary,” which gives an indication of any
problenms in a particular division. Each division also offers
nore specific indicators, which give nore information on the end
result and the strategy used. This is a “work in progress.”

10: 28: 48 AM

STEPHANIE BIRCH, Chief, Wnen & Children, Famly Health,
Division of Public Health, Departnent of Health and Soci al
Services (DHSS), explained that the post neonatal death rate
neasures the death rate of infants from one nonth after birth
through the first year. In regard to the post neonatal death
rate in Alaska, she said that the rate for Al askan Natives is
4.1 times higher than the rate for non-Al askan Natives. She
poi nted out the Healthy People target is 1.5 deaths per thousand
live births. She explained that many factors “feed into” the
post neonatal death rate, beginning prior to conception. The
overall health of wonen, including |evel of obesity and chronic
di seases plays a role. She stated that in the 1980s, it was
“very rare to see anyone coming in wth any ... <chronic
di seases]. Over the last 20 years, this anmount has grown to
al nrost 50 percent of wonmen coming into pregnancy; in Al aska,
this is “fairly acute.” Havi ng access to early and continuous
prenatal care has been a struggle. She expl ai ned that reducing
the rate of snoking and drinking during the first trinester of

pregnancy would greatly inprove the outcone, in addition to
havi ng cont i nuous pr enat al care visits Wi th trai ned
pr of essi onal s. Ms. Birch stated that sone early warning signs
are not recognized and the nothers are not transferred in for
care as early as is needed. This is also true of “urban
not hers.” In addition, the program has shown poor outcones in

regard to the low birth rate for African-Anerican wonen.

10: 33: 06 AM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- Oct ober 25, 2006



CHAIR WLSON inquired as to how often the problem is that the
not her doesn't go to prenatal care visits.

M5. BIRCH replied that the data collected in 2003 indicates that
over 40 percent of wonmen who wanted prenatal care were unable to
receive it. She explained that this is partly due to insurance
coverage, and opined that nationally, there is |ess enphasis on
the inportance of early prenatal care. She went on to say that

often, the first visit isn't scheduled until the 12 or 14 week
of pregnancy. She stated that the lifelong costs associated
with preventable birth defects are “quite outstanding.”
Continually, she said, between 450-500 infants are delivered and
admtted to the neonatal intensive care unit, level three, at
Provi dence Al aska Medical Center. She said “what’s inpressive
about that nunber — you would think ... over tine we would have
i nproved. But the babies are getting smaller.... So, that tells

us that we’re not doing as good a job, in ternms of picking up on
some of these chronic diseases [and infections] of nons.”

M5. BIRCH went on to say that nationally, there is a focus on
i nproving oral healthcare for pregnant wonen, as high anmounts of
bacteria in the system can cause infection of the placenta and
result in early delivery. | deal |y, she said, wonen would cone
in prior to pregnancy. She then explained that folic acid
suppl emrents have nade a huge inpact on children born wth neuro-
tube defects, adding that progress is being nmade in regard to
wonen’s know edge of folic acid, through the DHSS partnership
with the March of D nes. The Special Supplenental Program for
Wnen, Infants and Children (WC), she said, has worked wth
DHSS to educate Al askan Native wonen on the inportance of folic
acid, along with the traditional foods with high folic acid
content. However, she said, there is still “a long way to go.”

10: 38:45 AM

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA, in regard to folic acid, stated that it
this is not easy to obtain in many rural settings, and inquired
as to whether this relates to |ack of access to prenatal care in
rural areas.

M5. BIRCH replied that having a supplenent is preferable, adding
that the only way to get the supplenent is to receive prenata
care. Late access to prenatal care is the largest challenge to
Al askan Native wonen, she said.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- Oct ober 25, 2006



CHAIR WLSON opined that nmost of the clinics have vitamns to
gi ve the wonen

M5. BIRCH pointed out that wonmen have to know that they're
pregnant. Furthernore, between pregnancies is an inportant tine
to continue taking folic acid and identify and address other
i Ssues.

10: 41: 04 AM

M5. BIRCH enphasized the need to focus on prevention. In
conclusion, early identification, prevention, and intervention
are the focus of the “inproving birth outcones” neasurenent.

10: 42: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in regard to sonogranms and a possible
link to autism inquired as to whether the prenatal use of
sonograns is restricted to nedi cal necessity.

M5. BIRCH replied that she has not seen any scientific data on
that; however, Medicaid covers one ultrasound unless it is a
nmedi cal necessity. She added that in the private sector, there
has been nuch advertisenent for wonen receiving ultrasounds in
order to have a photograph of the baby in utero; however, this
i s not conmon.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked “has the state done anything to
raise the red flag to the nmedical community about that?”

M5. BIRCH replied that she would need to discuss this further
wi t h Medi cai d.

CHAIR WLSON opined that this issue came up as a result of a
weal t hy person purchasi ng a sonogram nmachi ne during pregnancy.

10: 45: 23 AM

TAMWY CGREEN, Chief, Chronic D sease, Division of Public Health

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS), stated that she
woul d be speaking about diabetes and obesity in Al aska. In
regard to Diabetes, she stated that there are “broad range
ram fications for the healthcare system” It inmpacts the
quality of life for patients experiencing the disease, as well
as affecting the healthcare system as a result of other issues
such as renal failure and dialysis, which are “very costly” to
treat. D abetes is a “nulti-faceted problem” There has been

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- Oct ober 25, 2006



she said, a rise in Type |l diabetes in youth, which is related
to obesity.

M5. CGREEN noved on to discuss obesity in Al aska. She pointed
out the goal of decreasing the adult obesity rate to less than

18 percent. If “overweight” is conbined with obesity, she said,
the total is about 63 percent of the popul ation. besity has
been Ilinked to cancer, heart disease, stroke, and high
chol esterol, in addition to poor body inmage and enotional

i ssues. (bese and overwei ght people are less likely to want to
exerci se, she said. A recent study showed that overweight youth
experience the sane |evel of enotional trauma as those
experienci ng cancer and chenot herapy. She said:

That really gives you that nagnitude of what it’s |ike

for a child to be overweight. And what we know is
that — if a child is overweight, it used to be that
people would say “Ch, they’'ll grow out of it, it’'s
baby fat,” but the research doesn’'t bare that out. It
shows that, if a child is overwight comng into
school the likelihood that they’re going to
“normalize” or cone out on the other end being a
normal weight is ... very unlikely. So, the sooner a

child experiences overweight or obesity, the nore
likely they’'re going to be overwight as an adult.
Thus leading to all of the chronic diseases that are
going to inpact their quality of life.

M5. GREEN went on to say that there is an obesity prevention and
control program that works with schools and communities in an
effort to meke exercise nore accessible along wth finding
easier ways to get fruits and vegetables to the nore rural
areas. The idea behind this, she said, is to nake it easier to
live a healthy lifestyle.

10: 52: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA expressed concern with regard to the
obesity chart. In 1999, she pointed out, Al aska was ahead of
the nation in obesity by a slight margin, but in 2005 the state
has noved ahead significantly.

CHAIR WLSON surmsed that doctors are “really aware” of the
probl em which nmakes a difference.

MS. GREEN indicated that another year of information is needed
to show “trend data.” At the current rate, she said, in the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- Oct ober 25, 2006



next ten years, 80 percent of the population will be overwei ght
or obese. The Chronic Disease Policy Acadeny, she said, has
been | ooking at various areas regarding chronic di sease over the
last few years, and supporting the idea of working wth
comunities.

10: 55: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that it would be helpful to view
the information on a graph showing the national trend-line and
t he Al aska trend-1line.

M5. CGREEN agreed that seeing the trends helps “crystallize” the
i nformation.

10: 56: 37 AM

M5. GREEN noved on to discuss the neasures relating to the
Division of Public Health. Specifically, she said, they would
be | ooking at coronary heart disease. She read from a handout
as follows: Alaska s coronary heart disease death rate is |ess
than 120 per 100, 000 popul ation. She pointed out that Al aska is
showi ng a decrease in death rate, and net the target in 2001 and
2002. She posed the question “how is this happening, [when] we
have these other things happening in terns of obesity and
di abetes, things that are inpacting coronary heart disease?”
She then explained that this is specifically tal king about the
death rate, rather than the incidence of the disease. There
have been, she said, “tremendous strides” in the treatnment of
coronary heart disease, noting that these treatnents include
medi cations, in addition to technical treatnents. She pointed
out an error in the handout regarding the national death rate,
noting that it should read “n/a,” as the data was not avail abl e.

CHAIR WLSON commented that “it’s pretty exciting” for Al aska.
Especially, she said, because Al aska has so many difficult to
reach areas that face additional obstacles in energency
si tuati ons.

10: 58: 53 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the incidence rate of coronary
heart di sease is avail abl e.

M5. GREEN replied that only the death rate is available at this
time.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- Oct ober 25, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to whether people wth
coronary heart disease that “left Al aska for treatnent and died
outside [of Alaska]” would be reported as an Al aska death or an
“out si de death.”

M5. GREEN replied that it “could be either.” She expl ained that
it would depend on where the patient died. QO her states wl
report to vital statistics if the individual is still a resident

of Al aska. She opined that the reporting process has inproved.
In addition, she said, nore people are choosing to stay in
Al aska for treatnent as a result of the higher level of care
avai l abl e to them

11: 00: 25 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA expressed interest in know ng whether the
| oner death rate has any correlation to the success of snoking
cessation in the state.

M5. GREEN replied that while it is difficult to make direct
cause associations, the departnent is attenpting to gather this
i nformation. The national data shows that the rates are going
down due to increased treatnment options nore than snoking
cessation or weight |oss.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA, in regard to the coronary heart disease
and cancer death rates, requested that the national nunbers for
2005 be sent to offices via email.

M5. GREEN agreed to do so.

11: 02: 43 AM

M5. GREEN continued with Al aska's cancer death rate, which has
al so decreased. This is due to early detection, which effects
the length and quality of Ilife. However, the incidence of
cancer has increased. Lung cancer, she said, is the biggest
cause of cancer related death in Al aska, and noted that this is
directly related to snoking. She said “we have good news on
this front, but we still have a lot of work to do, in terns of
really trying to educate people and help people understand what

they can do.” She stated that people may feel helpless
about how they get cancer. There are many lifestyle changes
that can help to prevent cancer from occurring.

11: 04: 22 AM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -9- Oct ober 25, 2006



M5. GREEN, in response to Chair WIlson, identified the follow ng
four diseases as the top diseases in Al aska: | ung cancer,
breast cancer in wonen, prostrate cancer in nen, and colon
cancer .

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if data is avail able regardi ng what
has been done to | ower the snoking rate in Al aska.

M5. GREEN related that trenendous strides have been made wth
the snoking cessation program Wthin a year, she said, nore

information wll be available regarding what is working and what
is not working, in addition to where efforts should be
i ncreased. The Quit Line program has had a good success rate
and now offers nicotine replacenent patches to callers who w sh
to quit snoking. In addition, she said, the annual report on
tobacco cessation wll give an update on the success of the
program

CHAIR WLSON agreed with Representative Seaton regarding the
i nportance of seeing the aforenentioned data.

11: 07: 57 AM

M5. GREEN noved on to discuss reducing the rate of snoking anong
Al askan yout h. The goal, she said, was to have l|less than 19
percent of high school aged youth in Al aska use tobacco
products. This goal was net in 2003. In 1999, when the youth
ri sk behavior survey was conducted, the snoking rate was around
37 percent. This decrease was correlated with the increase in
the statewi de tobacco tax, in addition to higher funding for
preventi on. In 2005 there was no data due to the effort
required to obtain parental consent forns and ensure that enough
surveys are collected for “weighted data.” Hopefully, she said,
the departnment will obtain enough data to show what has happened
bet ween 2003 and 2007. Nationally, she said, the rates have
started to “flatten, and ... go up again.” There has been a
“great anmount of success.” However, the departnent nust ensure

that it continues to nove in the right direction

11:10: 01 AM

CHAIR WLSON recalled that the active questionnaire requires
parental consent, and inquired as to whether the schools were
having trouble with the rate of return.

M5. GREEN replied that the Ilaw changed from “passive” to
“active” parental consent, adding that oftentines, parents wll

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 10- Oct ober 25, 2006



forget to respond. |If the response rate is not high enough, the
data is not representative of the entire population, which is
what happened in 2003. She also noted that the scope of the
survey reaches beyond tobacco to include all areas that affect
chroni c di sease.

CHAIR WLSON offered her understanding that w thout the correct
data to show whether or not a programis effective, the state is
not allowed access to funding grants that it mght otherw se
recei ve

M5. GREEN replied yes, and agreed that this would benefit from
further review by the |egislature. In response to a question
from Representative Seaton, she explained that a bill to change
from “active” to “passive” consent failed to pass during the
previous | egislative session.

11:13: 16 AM

CRI STY WLLER, Director, Central Ofice, D vision of Behavioral
Health, Departnment of Health and Social Services, began by
remnding the commttee of Alaska's rates in relation to
behavi oral health. She explained that there are nmany societa
costs in addition to the human costs. In the United States, she
said, 500 mllion workdays were |ost due to alcoholism $277
paid by each taxpayer goes towards dealing wth the
consequential burdens of substance abuse, while only $10 is put
towards prevention. Approxi mately 13 percent of each states
budget is put toward these issues. She cited a 2005 report by
the McDowel|l G oup which shows a $738 million loss to the state
each year in ternms  of productivity, crim nal justice,
heal t hcar e, traffic accidents, and public assistance, in
addition to roughly $50 million given out in the form of grants
for direct treatnent and prevention.

11:17: 26 AM

M5. WLLER pointed out that many of the m ssions and neasures
are attached to the departnments because they are multi-faceted.
She then turned attention to the Bring the Kids Hone program
which would bring Al askan youth back from out of state
pl acenent, in addition to preventing youth from being placed out
of state. She directed attention to the first of three charts,
which is a line chart. She explained that this is not as usefu

in ternms of annual trends; however, it shows that in 2006, |ess
youth were being sent out of state during the last few nonths.
The bar chart, she said, shows the “turn the curve idea.”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- Oct ober 25, 2006



REPRESENTATIVE WLSON related a story of a famly where five

children were renoved and sent to separate hones. The state
then had to pay for the children to fly and see a counselor in a
different town. She opined that if the counselor had conme to

the children this would have saved the state noney and been
“less traumatic” for the children. She inquired as to the rules
regarding this type of situation.

11: 23: 23 AM

M5. WLLER replied that she does not “know the regulations well
enough to understand how that could happen.” She noted that
sone children and adults in Alaska are “falling through the
cracks” as a result of funding regulations and priorities. The
departnent has had neetings to identify which type of famly is
nost |likely to experience this, and how to solve this problem

11: 24: 45 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opi ned that the graph shows less in-state
occupancy than in 2001. He said “We had a couple of years where
we inproved a little, and now we’ve dropped right back to where
we were in 2002.” He inquired as to whether this interpretation
of the graph is correct.

M5. WLLER replied that the graph shows the “relative nature of
in-state and out-of-state.” She then referred to a table
showi ng the nunber of youth in residential psychiatric treatnent
pl acenent over the last four years. The out of state placenents
on the aforenentioned table, for 2003 and 2004, shows an

increase in the nunber of youth sent out of state. She said
“the next two change nunbers under it are showng |ess Kkids
being sent out of state. So, it’'s another turn.” Wen the out-

of -state placenents are subtracted fromthe total, the renainder
is youth in-state. She opined that an additional colum would
make this clearer.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that the nunber
of youth out-of-state |owered from 2003-2006, adding that for
2001, the nunber of in-state youth woul d have been even hi gher.

CHAI R W LSON commented that the chart is confusing.

11: 28: 34 AM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- Oct ober 25, 2006



M5. WLLER offered to redo the charts in order to graphically
illustrate the changes. She then expressed the need to keep in
m nd that the enphasis of this programwas in 2004. She went on
to explain that nore beds have been added in-state, in addition
to increasing services with community service providers.

11: 30: 24 AM

CHAIR WLSON recalled that Bring the Kids Hone is really about
providing nore treatnent in Alaska rather than sending them
outside to do so.

M5. WLLER agreed and noted that other systens have been
of fered, such as the “gatekeeper system” which analyzes out-of-
state referrals to ensure that an “appropriate situation” for
the child to be in closer to hone.

CHAIR WLSON recalled that previously there had been discussion
that parent or guardian insurance would be utilized prior to
Medi car e.

11: 32: 32 AM

JERRY FULLER, Project Director, Ofice of Program Review, Ofice
of the Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Health and Social Services
(DHSS), stated that this was a requirenment of HB 426. He
explained that in the current Medicaid program if a child has
i nsurance that would cover the needed services, the insurance
conpany is billed for the service. Unfortunately, he said, nost
i nsurance conpanies do not cover [residential] psychiatric
treatment of youth.

11: 33: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA comrented that she has tracked the history
of “high-risk”™ youth for several decades. |In the 80s, she said,
there was inplenentation of “waparound services,” which was

replicated in other states, although Al aska no |onger offers
t hese services. Al aska, she said, has “noved away” from | ocal
community solutions, along with losing grants that would allow

services that Medicaid does not. She said “services were
delivered that sinply cannot be delivered under our present
funding source.” She opined that the current system in regard

to a rural setting, takes youth away from famlies pernmanently,
as the culture has been taken away fromthe child. She said “I
think it would be great for us to look back at our history,
figure out what did work in the past, and figure out what’s

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 13- Oct ober 25, 2006



still here that mght be used. ... | think if we’'re going to
really fix the problem we have to ... use sonme of the talent
that ... is in the state, not constantly inport new people.”

MR. FULLER related that during a neeting of the Medical Care
Advi sory Conmmittee in Barrow, a reconmmendation was nade for a
study to | ook back at the environment when behavioral health was
a “general funded progranmi with little Mdicaid funds. The
Mental Health Trust Authority is funding such a study, he said,
which currently is in the beginni ng stages.

11: 38: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to whether tickets nust be
purchased in advance for parental visits, so that the state is
not paying the highest prices.

MR. FULLER replied that the parents are encouraged to see their
children on a routine basis. He stated that he does not know
whet her the parents are required to purchase tickets in advance,
addi ng that the state does have a preferred contract with Al aska
Airlines, and should be receiving a reduced rate. More details
regarding this issue can be provided, he said.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said “1’d just appreciate getting [this
i nformation].”

11: 40: 24 AM

M5. WLLER, in regard to closer case nmanagenent of youth out- of -
state, stated that parental visits are not vacations, but are
“therapeutic events” for the famly. To work closer with the
t herapi st, she said, neans that any travel and conmunication is
pl anned out. In regard to the additional beds, she stated that
they are usually added in the larger conmunities. The program
she explained, is intended to provide accessible services
outside of the residential progranms. Currently, she said, there
are around 110 youth participating in individualized services.
These include in home services, independent [|iving skil
training, treatnment and foster care facilities, after school
prograns, and parenting prograns. The idea, she said, is not to
rely conpletely on residential prograns.

11: 42: 22 AM

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA recalled that the state had previously
done a study in collaboration wth University of Al aska

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- Oct ober 25, 2006



Anchorage (UAA), which |ooked into how the states child welfare
prograns were working, and if they were not working, why not
She offered her understanding that the program did not have a
“good track record” of following a nodel program She opi ned
that it may be helpful to the conmttee to revisit this study.

M5. WLLER replied that these studies can be found on the web
site, and agreed to forward this information to the nenbers’.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA asked if the prograns being utilized are
fitted wth evidence-based nodel s.

M5. WLLER replied the aforenentioned study was used to devel op
t he standards and evaluate the need for “step down” services.

11:45:14 AM

CHAIR WLSON related her belief that nore children need nenta
health services each year, and inquired as to whether a study
has been done to di scover the reason for this.

M5. WLLER answered that there are national preval ence studies
that show this information, and offered to research this. She
related that the aforenentioned beds were already filled, and
sai d:

So ... 1I'm seeing the npbving target that you're
describing, that really, the inpact we’'re nmaking on
that is going to be interesting to judge, because it’'s

against the growing trend |ine of needs. And, in
order to discuss the one, we have to discuss the other
with nore specificity, you re right. So, that’s
sonmething we need to work on. We're working on

bal | - par ki ng preval ence st udi es for specific
popul ations of young people and adults: FASD,
traumatic brain injury, [autisn]. As a way to
identify special populations of those kids that we're
ill-serving because, as | nentioned before, they're
falling through the «cracks. But, in ternms of
causality, | think we’'ll have to look nore to the

nati onal [studies].

11: 48: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA said that over the past few years, she has
noticed individuals in conmunity nental health discussing the
increase in the chronic nental health, while the capacity to

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- Oct ober 25, 2006



handl e them is decreasing. She inquired as to how nuch the
departnment tracks these types of concerns.

M5. WLLER replied that there are four large provider groups in
the state, each of which she neets with on a nonthly basis. For
the last 10 years, she said, due to a reduction in grant funds,
nore prograns have had to serve a “nore acute” popul ation. In
regard to why the population is growng, she stated that this
because the departnent is not able to focus on intervention and
prevention. She stated that the it is inportant to |ook at the
affects these issues have on jobs, primary care, and other
areas. Enployees and practitioners are voicing frustration that
t hey must focus on populations in crisis.

11: 53: 38 AM

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that while school funding has been
i ncreased over the last six years, the schools are still unable
to fund in-school counselors. She opined that it is “pretty

crucial” to look at school funding in this way, and ensure each
school has a counsel or.

11:55: 15 AM

M5. WLLER noved on to a chart showing the suicide rate in
Al aska. She explained that Al aska has double the US suicide
rate, and the Al askan Native rate is four times the US rate
Suicide is the nunber one cause of death for people under the
age of 50, and clains around 125 I|ives each year. She has
| ooked at studies done, and approxinmately 50 percent of the
famly of the deceased reported that the person had a drinking
pr obl em 36 percent were arrested for drinking behavior, 50
percent were intoxicated with alcohol or other drug at the tine
of death. 45 to 50 percent of the individuals were on drugs of
some ki nd. She related that 39 percent of the individuals had
i nsurance coverage for nental health issues. 50 percent were
depressed, 46 percent experienced a traumatic event, 92 percent
owned firearms, 53 percent had previous thoughts of suicide, and
20 percent experienced sone form of abuse prior to the age of
ni ne. 25 percent w tnessed violence, and a high percentage of
the individuals had a famly nenber die during childhood. This
| ast factor, she said, may be tied into neonatal care.

M5. WLLER noved on to discuss attenpted suicide. The study
shows that nore than $4 nillion per vyear 1is used for
hospitalization of those who attenpt suicide. Thi s nunber does
not include specialization or technology, and at Ileast $1

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 16- Oct ober 25, 2006



mllion each year is absorbed by the hospital. This is, she
said, one of the nexus points of behavioral health issues, and
connects with enploynent, poverty, cultural dislocation, anong
ot her things. She said “this is the low point of where these
things conbine to disrupt a person's life. And obviously, a
whole fam ly-and communities, when there are cluster suicides,
of course, we see entire conmunities at risk.” She noted that
the division has a suicide prevention program which she feels
is a unique program because the noney goes directly to the
comunity. She opined that the conmunities “make wong guesses
sonetines,” and suggested a followback study to show which
prograns are the nost successful. The ability of the division
to nmake a direct <connection wth the |eaders of snall
communities is “a good strategy.”

12: 00: 58 PM

CHAIR WLSON inquired as to whether the aforenentioned program
i s worKking. She said “if we're spending noney there, and we
haven’t seen the results that we would |i ke, naybe we should be
putting the nmoney in a different area.” She stressed the
i nportance of know ng where the noney is going and whether or
not these prograns are effective.

12: 04: 13 PM

M5. WLLER agreed that it is inmportant to know what is worKking.
The prevention departnent is putting together an epidem ol ogi cal
work group, which will produce the information that is needed.
The group is called “EPlI group,” she said, and offered to
distribute the mnutes from the first neeting to the nenbers’.
She then noved on to discuss the Al aska Psychiatric Institute
(APlI') readm ssion rate. This shows that 12.7 percent of
patients at APl have been patients previously. This is nuch
hi gher than the national average, and shows that the comrunity
services around the state are not equipped to handle the
individuals returned to the general population well enough to
keep them from returning.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that the
patients had not only been admtted before, but were admtted
again within 30 days of being discharged. He suggested that
this may be related to the lack of space or ill-equipped
community services.

M5. WLLER agreed that this is the case. She added that the
| ength of stay may be too short to “do the job.”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- Oct ober 25, 2006



CHAIR WLSON noted that the funding has been increased for AP
personnel, adding that this may result in additional registered
nursing staff. She stated that hopefully, this would make a
di fference.

COWMM SSI ONER JACKSON noted that there has been a positive trend
line over the |ast few years.

M5. WLLER added that this is a “multiplex” issue. | ncr eased
salaries will inprove the in-house services; however, the state
nmust “l ook el sewhere” for solutions.

12: 07: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if an analysis would be done to
identify what APl believes is the cause of the returning
patients.

MR. WLLER replied that the division has done work in this area,
relative to budget requests in addition to |ooking at what was
i ntended to happen when the program was downsi zed. The division
has al so been |ooking at new ideas that nmay be nore efficient.
The solutions include: better detox and crisis respite,
di scharge pl anni ng, and housi ng.

CHAIR WLSON noted that sone itens are not available due to |ack
of funding by the legislature. She inquired as to whether there

is a way to show the cause and effect of not funding these
ar eas.

M5. WLLER replied that this may be possible.

CHAIR WLSON opined that if there is a reason that APl does not
have the support services, it would not be APIs fault.

12:10: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON recal led that the previous year, the | ocal
hospital funding issue was fixed. He inquired as to whether
this has hel ped hospitals retain patients for the first 3-5 days
wi t hout needing to send the patient to API.

M5. WLLER replied yes, but expressed the need to provide

nunbers and highlighted that it's a |lower |evel of care. She
opined that “loosening the reigns” has helped in rural areas,
and will continue to do so. APl , she said, is involved in

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- Oct ober 25, 2006



“tel e-behavioral health solutions.” She stated that although
this would not apply to a person in acute psychiatric crisis, it
may inpact APlIs ability to contain those in need. Anot her
problem is that APl must take those individuals brought to them
by the police, which is difficult, as it's a situation in which
there is a | egal issue.

CHAI R W LSON expressed frustration with the |lack of therapy that
the hospitals can provide because of the staff isn't qualified
to provide such

12:14: 45 PM

M5. WLLER noved on to the division's mssions and neasures, and
said that the two charts used represent responses for adults and
yout h. She pointed out that this year, the responses are 23
percent higher than in previous years. She explained that the
charts show the results of surveys asking individuals in the
treatment program questions related to productivity. She noted
that this question is broad in order to include all types of
productivity, and said “defined |oosely, how productive do you
feel ? Because this is a therapeutic issue, this isn't
necessarily ... it’s feeling productive, if you have a place to
go and work and feel like you re an able nenber of society-
[this] is a critical factor in well-being.” The survey also
i ncludes questions regarding physical, nental, and enotional
health, thoughts of self-harm famly and social support,
safety, sense of well-being, spirituality, financial security,
and housi ng. She stated that the patients are asked when they
arrive, when they |eave, and after they have been on their own
for 6 and 12 nonths. This information is then conpared.

M5. WLLER went on to say that the first chart shows individuals
sel f-assessnent of their maintenance and inprovenent in each
area, noting that the adults show nore inprovenent than the
youth. These surveys can be broken into nore specific areas to
determ ne where the funds would best be spent. |In regard to the
sel f harm nmeasure, she explained that the question was “are you
t hi nki ng | ess about self harn®” She pointed out that this is
why it appears that the thoughts about self-harm are rising,
however, due to the wording of the question, the opposite is
true.

12: 20: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, in regard youth productivity, offered his
understanding that nore than half felt nore productive, while

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- Oct ober 25, 2006



roughly 40 percent felt |ess productive. He opined that it is
important to provide individuals outlets “so that they feel they
have a neaningful life.” He stated that the inportance of this
nmeasure needs to be communi cated, adding that the 40 percent of
people who are feeling less productive really needs to be
addr essed.

M5. WLLER agreed with this. She reiterated that one way to
focus would be to sort the results into nore specific areas.
She opined that the concentration of suicidality anmong young
native males is related to the loss of ®“a very productive,
creative life, which now no longer is, for a variety of econonic
and social ... reasons.” She conmmented that while the state is
unable to have direct inpact in all areas, it is attenpting to
identify these issues and help comunities organize in order to
have an i npact.

12:24: 09 PM

M5. WLLER noved on to explain the neasure intended to track the
nunber of native entities that are able to bill for Medicaid

She then explained the *“satisfaction” neasure. This shows

results of a survey given to patients to track satisfaction with
care. For residential prograns, the patient is given the survey
when they |eave the program and then mails it back. This, she
said, provides the patient with anonymty. The intent of the
nmeasure is to track whether the state is inproving its ability
to provide satisfactory treatnent. The adult chart, which shows
data over a three year tinme period, shows nore satisfaction from

2004- 2006. The famly and youth responses are “less
satisfactory.” She pointed out that the youth were |ess
satisfied in 2005-2006. The information was al so broken down by
ethnicity, and the youth, she said, were “fairly equal” in terns
of satisfaction, with the exception of access to services and
cultural sensitivities. In the aforenentioned areas, she said,
the Alaska Native youth were |ess satisfied. In addition, she
pointed out that although the Al aska Native youth were |ess
satisfied, the satisfaction level was still high. She said
“This has sonething to do with outcones, it has sonmething to do
with ... successive treatnment - not everything. W don't expect
people to be in our treatnment progranms to really I|ike being

t here, al ways. We're a chall engi ng pl ace. But, we think it’'s
certainly inportant to watch these trends and see where it slips
and try to identify - in these conponents - what we can do
better wth.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- Oct ober 25, 2006



CHAIR WLSON inquired as to the nunber of children versus adults
in the program

M5. WLLER replied that she does not have this infornmation with
her; however, the surveys received a 94 percent higher response,
up from|[2005]. She offered to forward this information.

CHAIR WLSON stated that this information would be “nice to
have,” adding that if the adults outnunber the children in the
program the program nay need to focus nore on the children in
order to change the future nunber of adults in the program

12: 30: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for «clarification regarding the
nunbers on the last chart.

M5. WLLER agreed to take a closer look at the charts to ensure
that the nunbers are correct.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON in regard to the suicide rate, asked if
those individuals with access to insurance had or had not
utilized this insurance, and whether the prograns used were
af fecti ve. He commented that half of the individuals wth
mental health care available to them had commtted suicide and
posed the question “where’s the problen®?” He expressed hope
that this informati on would be available in the future.

M5. WLLER agreed and added that she would like to find out how
“insurance” is defined, also. She questioned whether this was
referring to private insurers or Indian health services. I n
addition, she said, there were statistics showi ng how nmany of
t hose individuals who conmtted suicide were seeing a therapist,
and how many weeks it had been since the last visit. She
offered to gather this information.

12:32: 47 PM

COMM SSI ONER JACKSON, in regard to the productivity nmeasure,
stated that the departnment had previously attenpted to include a
category titled “open opportunities” in the budget, which would
have addressed the issue that individuals “need sonething that
they can do that nmakes them feel productive.” However, this was
not included in the final budget. She said that, perhaps, the
menbers would be able to come up with a better way to “frane
this,” as this is sonething that needs to be addressed.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- Oct ober 25, 2006



12:33: 24 PM

STEPHANI E WHEELER, Executive Director, Faith Based and Conmunity
Initiatives (FBCl), Department of Health and Social Services
(DHSS), said that the national Faith Based and Community
Initiatives (FBClI) program was established as a result of an
executive order from the President in 2001, and is an expanded
version of the previous admnistrations “Charitable Choice”
pr ogram The FBCI program she said, seeks to strengthen and
expand the capacity of faith based and community organizations,
to provide federally and state funded social services. Thi s
woul d enable the conmunity groups to neet the needs of |ocal
individuals facing life challenges. She noted that there has
been controversy regarding the FBCl program one of which is the
“separation of church and state.” She expl ained that the FBC
program has guidelines and regulations in place in order to deal
wth this. There are 11 federal agencies with FBCl offices, and
the DHSS works closely with the federal agencies, as well as
with regional partners. In addition, she said, 32 states
currently have state FBCl offices.

M5. WHEELER noved on to explain the [federal] FBC program

priorities. These i ncl ude: at-risk youth; domestic violence;
substance abuse; homel essness; poverty; healthy marriage
initiative;, welfare-to-work; prison re-entry; H V/ Al DS. The
Al aska FBCI office was established in January 2005, and is
supported by an 22 nenber advisory council. The state
priorities, she said, are “pretty nmuch in-line” wth the
national priorities, and focus on healthcare related issues. In

addition to the aforenmentioned priorities, the state has added
sui ci de prevention and hunger.

12: 37: 07 PM

M5. VWHEELER stated that the state FBCI program has been working
with the federal partners, and is considering three additiona

priorities. These are: conmbat war veterans; at-risk seniors;
di saster relief planning. In regard to at-risk seniors, she
explained that seniors are one of the fastest grow ng
popul ations in the state. In addition, one third of the seniors
in Alaska are living in poverty. She pointed out that Florida

is considering providing preventative healthcare to its seniors,
and is working on nodel projects which include faith-based

or gani zati ons. The aforenentioned projects would provide day-
care services for seniors, and would provide supportive services
on-site. The faith-based organizations wuld work wth
governnent agencies to provide these services. The nodel

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- Oct ober 25, 2006



progranms, she said, are showing a decrease in cost of healthcare
for the seniors involved in the prograns. In regard to disaster
relief, stated that faith-based organizations were affective in
the aftermath of Hurricanes Katrina and Rita.

12: 39: 10 PM

M5. WHEELER then discussed the FBCI prograns in Al aska. Project
Access, she said, provides insurance coverage to uninsured and
underinsured individuals. She referred to a previous Power Poi nt
presentation titled “Partnerships Leverage Resources,” and
stated that the aforenentioned programis a “really good exanple
of how partnerships really do | everage resources.”

12:39: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to a recent newspaper article
which stated that seniors would soon need to nove from Al aska
due to an inability to receive Medicare. He inquired as to
whet her the FBCI would influence the availability of Medicare
for seniors in the state.

M5. WHEELER replied that the FBC program does not; however,
creating partnerships creates nore ideas on how to provide these
services to seniors. This includes pulling in faith-based
organi zati ons and volunteers to work on nodel projects.

12:40: 54 PM

MR. FULLER explained that Medicare is federally operated, and
therefore the state does not have influence over this program
He sai d:

The issue in the newspaper, over the |ast several
months, has to do with a reinbursenent reduction to
physicians that occurred in January of [ 2006] ,

specific to Al aska. In January of [2007], at a
national level, there is anticipated to be another 5
per cent reduction to physician services. Qur
del egation, and | would say, all of the congressiona
del egations are very much aware of that. And they’'re
all working very hard to have a legislative fix during
this “lanme-duck” session. Qur del egation already has
| anguage witten to repair the [2006 and 2007] damage,
to tack on to the national novenent. So, it remains
to be seen, but ... it’s strictly a federal issue that

the state has no i nfluence over

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 23- Oct ober 25, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON requested clarification regarding when
doctors cannot or will not take Medicare patients.

MR. FULLER replied that it is the physicians’ choice. He
expl ai ned that some physicians that have previously chosen to
see Medicare patients are now informng the patient that he/she
no |onger accepts Medicare, and therefore can no |onger see the
patient. He said “Unless they want to pay cash. So, that’s
their access route at this point.” Additionally, he said, if
the patient is covered by any other type of insurance, including
state insurance, Medicare nust pay before the secondary forns of
insurance will pay. He said “if the doctor drops his acceptance
of Medicare, it affectively shuts them off from all their
i nsurance benefits, whatever they mght be.” The remaining
access, he said, is very mninal. Al askan Native patients do
still have benefits through tribal health corporations. There
are also comunity clinics which receive public health service
grants, which are often overloaded with patients.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the only influence possible would
be an expansion of the community health care clinics. He al so
inquired as to whether establishing these clinics is state or
federal ly regul at ed.

MR. FULLER replied that the state has sone ability to designate
areas of the state “nedically underserved,” which is the "open
gateway to the federal side.” Over the last few years, he said,
the state received a “huge expansion,” and he is unsure of what
the remaining opportunity is, in terns of expanding the capacity
in the current areas or adding additional areas.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER stated that there are comunity health

centers in over 22 organizations throughout the state. These
are distributed across 100 conmmunities. These centers are
federally funded. Many of the sites, she said, were tribal
sites, with very few centers that are newly constructed. Thi s

is mainly expansion and reinforcement of many existing sites.
Wthin the last week, she said, new access points have been
announced by the Health Resources and Service Admnistration

(HRSA) . She explained that the conmunities nust have a
medically underserved area designation, which is federa
desi gnat i on. The majority of areas throughout the state which

nmeet the criteria are currently designated as such. She noted
that many communities interested in providing the services do
not neet the criteria, adding that the sites nust conpete
agai nst other states and comunities which have applied for the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- Oct ober 25, 2006



same funds. In the past, she said, other state resources have
been applied to primary care organizations and services;
however, these were direct grants, and none are currently
avai | abl e.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON inquired as to whether the community
health centers accept Medicare.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER replied yes, adding that the centers nust
first be attentive to the patient |oad distribution. She
poi nted out that Medicaid and Medicare nmust be included in the
centers financial projection.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if the legislature plays a role in
hel ping establish or continue access [to nmedical care] for the
seni or population that is not able to see a private doctor.

UNI DENTI FI ED SPEAKER replied that she is unable to answer this
guestion at this tine. She explained that many of the sites
receive a conbination of state and federal funding.

12: 49: 49 PM

CHAIR WLSON surmised that the legislature could require the
doctors to see a percentage of Medicare patients, or require the
secondary i nsurance conpanies to pay, even if Medicare does not.

COWMM SSI ONER JACKSON suggested hol ding an additional neeting to
discuss the difference between Mdicare and Medicaid, in
addition to what the | egislature can do.

CHAI R WLSON agreed, adding that while the funding may currently
be available, it is inportant to consider whether this can be
sustained in the future.

12:52: 09 PM

M5. WHEELER conti nued her presentation by discussing the healthy
marriage initiative. Al aska, she said, had an opportunity to
“do sone creative things around the healthy marriage
initiative.” However, she said, this was very short-lived. In

fiscal year 2005 (FYO5) $150,000 was dedicated to healthy
marriage initiatives, along with $500,000 the follow ng year.
Over half of the healthy nmarriage grantees were faith-based
or gani zati ons. Nat i onal research shows that children of
famlies involved in the healthy narriage progranms do better in
school, have better access to healthcare, and show |ess at-risk

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 25- Oct ober 25, 2006



behavior. |If the opportunity to recreate these prograns were to
ari se, she would encourage the legislature to take a |ook at the
national outcones fromthis initiative.

CHAIR WLSON opined that one reason this program is no |onger
funded is due to a | ack of evidence showing its effectiveness.

M5. WHEELER returned to health care and conmunity initiatives.
The FBCI program is developing healthcare mnistries wthin
faith-based organizations. There are, she said, over 46 faith-
based organizations participating, adding that these are
primarily prevention and intervention neasures. She pointed out
several different progranms around the state which are involved
in these initiatives, including one in Anchorage and Sitka.
These prograns are volunteer run. The Tribal Conmunity
Devel opnent Coalition oversees the Mnority Education Health
Commttee, which is developing simlar healthcare mnistries.
The FBCI program works closely with the Alaska State Community
Service Conmi ssi on (ASCSO) , which  tracks and recruits
vol unt eers.

12: 56: 47 PM

M5. VWHEELER noved on to discuss conbat war veterans. In regard
to Alaskan Native individuals who go to war, she stated that a
nunber of healthcare issues are show ng up. It is wunknown
whet her these issues are preexisting or are aggravated by war
condi ti ons. The concern, she said, is when the aforenentioned
individuals return to the rural areas of the state - None,
Bethel, Dillingham and Juneau - there are no veteran outreach
servi ces. The veteran outreach prograns are considering a

partnership with the Indian Health Services in these areas in
order to provide the appropriate services.

CHAIR WLSON asked if the veteran’s famly wll have services
avai | abl e, al so.

M5. WHEELER replied that this will be considered, as well.

CHAIR WLSON asked if the mlitary provides funding for these
servi ces.

M5. WHEELER replied that because there are no veteran' s services

available, this is something that the veteran’s admnistration
will need to look at, and this is currently being done.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- Oct ober 25, 2006



CHAIR WLSON opined that this information should be passed on to
the congressional delegation, as there are “quite a few people
from Al aska conpared to other states.” She surm sed, then, that
the congressional delegation my be able to channel additiona
funds to Al aska for this purpose.

M5. WHEELER said that a neeting is scheduled for Decenber 6,
during which she wll bring up this issue. In 2005, she said,
the DHSS inplenented the Alaska Partnership for Healthy
Communi ti es. This initiative, she said, is intended to inprove
the collaboration anbng governnment agencies and comunities.
Several related projects also exist. In regard to the MatSu
Fam |y Centered Services pilot project, she said:

Over the sunmer, [the departnent] did an eval uation of
that MatSu pilot project. And what they found was
that they took these 15 famlies, who are the hardest
to serve, within the division of public assistance,
and tried to figure out why these famlies were not
movi ng towards self-sufficiency. And, putting all of
the pieces together, 50 percent of these famlies
actually had children who were involved wth the

juvenile justice center — and this is the ... beauty
of comunity partnerships — 50 percent of the adults
in those famlies ... had sone kind of involvenent
with the adult crimnal justice system ... 70 percent
of those famlies had some type of involvenment wth
the Ofice of Children’s Services, ... and ... many of

these famlies were challenged with substance abuse,
mental health issues, donestic violence, and other
physi cal health issues. And so, when — if one agency
who's working with these famlies, there wouldn't have
been the opportunity to collaborate on |[|ooking at
priorities for these famlies. Instead, what you
woul d have had, was famlies running from agency to
anot her agency, to another agency, and really feeling
overwhel med by the pressure of trying to neet the
demands of all of these agencies that they' re involved

W t h. And so, this is a wonderful comuni ty
col | aborative partnership that really takes a |ook at
these priorities for the famlies. Famlies are -

this is famly centered services, so these services
are actually wapped around these famlies to deal
with each of their issues, one ... step at a tine....
So, by working with conmunity partners, organizations
and agencies, they are better able to prioritize
services, develop a common plan with all the agencies

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- Oct ober 25, 2006



involved, and are actually noving these fanlies

toward sel f-sufficiency. That was an eye-opener that
we discovered over the sumer, and ... a really good
t hi ng.

There is a simlar project happening ... wth the

Fai rbanks Fam |y Centered Services pilot project. And
: you' ve heard already, some of the projects working
under the children’s policy team regarding bringing
the kids hone. [In addition,] there’'s the early
chi | dhood devel opnent pr oj ect and care
coordi nation.. ..

1: 04: 03 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked if m ssions and neasures had been set up for
the Famly Centered Services pilot projects, in order to see the
changes over tine. She opined that this would be hel pful during
future presentations to the |egislature.

M5. WHEELER agreed, and added that there has been discussion
regarding ways to create simlar projects in other comunities.
She concluded by saying that the FBClI office recently received a
grant award through the Conpassion Capital Funds (CCF) in the
amount of $500, 000. She explained that CCF is the cornerstone
of the national FBCI program This is, she said, the only “new
pot of noney” dedicated to FBCI. She went on to say that CCF is
designed to help organizations partner wth the federal

government, in order to strengthen the organizations ability to
serve those in need. It is also intended to increase
ef fecti veness, enhance the ability to provide social services,
and expand to create additional conmmunity collaboration. Last
year, Al aska received $550,000 through the CCF capacity building
grant. This year, she said, the anount “al nost doubl ed,” adding
that the Eskinmb Comunity Center in Nome was awarded $300, 000

in addition to several smaller FBCI organizations around the
state that received $50,000 each. The state office, she said,

will work alongside the aforenentioned organizations, and wll
provide training and technical assistance. In addition, she
stated, it wll be working with federal partners to do “nore

stringent evaluations” in order to see whether the FBCl prograns
are wor ki ng.

1: 08: 45 PM

MR. FULLER began his presentation by stating that he would be
avai l able for followup discussions regarding |ong-term care.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- Oct ober 25, 2006



He explained that a recent report projected out an extrene
increase in cost for long-term care over the next 20-25 years,

and the Medicaid budget would be “quadruple.” This growth, he
said, is nostly due to denographics: baby booners, and
i ndividuals nmoving to Alaska to retire. |If those who retire in
Al aska have retirenent benefits, this is good; however, when
these benefits run out, Medicaid is used. He went on to say

that the average daily rate for nursing hones in Alaska in 2005
was $371 per day, which is over $1,100 per nonth.

MR. FULLER stated that the “problenf with Medicaid is that “it’s
too successful,” and is the “safety net” when other sources
fail. He referred to a recent newspaper article which stated
that private enployers are either dropping health insurance
coverage or charging nore for it. He said:

You can understand that, that’s business. It’s a
gl obal econony we’'re in ... conpeting with countries
with no benefits. But, bottom l|ine, those folks
w t hout benefits, wll, when they need healthcare,
find it soneplace. Whether it's at the energency

room or healthcare coverage for their children
t hrough Denali Kid Care. Sooner or later, it’s gonna
fall to Medi caid.

MR. FULLER went on to say that Alaska has done a “good job”
cont ai ni ng costs. This has been done by keeping many nursing
home bed rates “relatively flat, for quite a nunber of years,”
he said, adding that there are roughly 600 beds throughout the

st at e. In addition to the aforenmentioned bed rates, he said

the state has provided waivers permtting people to live in
their own hones, or in assisted living honmes wthin their
conmuni ty. He noted that while these cost |ess than nursing
homes, it is still a significant cost. Referring to a report
done by The Lewin G oup, he said that under the current system
the Medicaid budget wll quadruple by the vyear 2025. He

stressed the inportance of finding a nore sustainabl e approach.
1:13: 05 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked if the state will be able to sustain the
projected increase in the Medicaid budget.

MR. FULLER replied that this will depend on many factors, which
are beyond his scope of know edge. In response to an additiona
guestion, he surmsed that using current rates and information
the state would not be able to sustain the aforenentioned

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 29- Oct ober 25, 2006



increase. He opined that the state needs to make the program as
sust ai nabl e as possible, and the needs to work with the governor
and the | egislature to nake the necessary changes. 1In regard to
the m ssions and neasures for long-term care, he said that these
are mninmal and do not apply to the challenge faced by Mdi caid.
Once the necessary changes are decided on, new neasures should
be decided on, in order to show whether the changes are
successful. He said:

As you're well aware, you see all the inputs that go

into all of the systens throughout the state. It’s
our job to cone up with measurable outputs that show
that we’'re neeting with challenges, if you wll. And

so, right now, it’s totally inadequate, at |east from
nmy poi nt of view.

1: 15: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his understanding that a |arge
percentage of costs utilized in the healthcare system are used
within the last two nonths of life. He inquired as to whether
the agency has begun |ooking for a programmatic way to address
this issues. He opined that choices need to be nade regarding
mai ntaining quality of life and funding, adding in his opinion

funds should not be taken away from children’s health and well -
being and put into the last two nonths of life. However, he
sai d, he does not know of any ideas addressing this issue.

MR. FULLER replied that a proposal is likely to be nade to the
governor during the next legislative session. On a national
level, he said, there is indication that disease nanagenent
prograns can reduce the cost of care. He said:

We’'ve been flirting ... wth proposing a couple
different specific disease nanagenent scenarios where
providing the case managenent and also working wth
the provider system about best practices to mnmanage
t hose di sease states. Again, at the national |[evel

the termis “return on investnent.” You spend a buck

what do you save? And that’'s really soft — that’s why
we’'ve been reluctant to just go full boar with this.

But, | think our judgnment is that there’'s enough
information out there that we should at |east get
started in that direction. Now, that’s not going to

create huge savings-it may not create any savings for
the end of life issues, but it’s a small begi nning.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- Oct ober 25, 2006



MR. FULLER went on to say that the current system needs to be
exam ned for ways to use healthcare dollars w sely. One way
woul d be to adapt technology to neet the needs of |ong-term care
patients. This would include caneras and audi o set up in-house,

as a way to check in on those individuals. He opined that while
this may not neet all the needs, all possibilities need to be
consi der ed. Currently, he said, Alaska considers “assisted
living” to be anything froma single person in a private honme to
pi oneer honmes, which he opined does not nmake sense going
f orward. He surmsed that the services provided would be
different in a small residence conpared to a larger facility.

If this difference is significant, the rei nbursenment nethodol ogy
needs to be reconsidered. He stated that over the next 5 years,

the state needs to figure out what would best neet the future
needs. He said “I wish | could say that if we do A B, and C

it’s gonna decrease the cost by ... 5 percent a year, but I'm
not smart enough to be able to do that.”

CHAIR WLSON stated her belief that this is not possible. Even

she said, if the cost per person is decreased, there will not be
a drop in the cost, as there would be nore people. She
surm sed, then, that if the growh could be contained, this
woul d be fortunate.

1:19: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed concern that the assisted living
nodel s di scussed would be “going by the wayside.” He stated
that several of his constituents who run small hones are being
regul ated out of business, which places the patients into the
| arger institutions. He opined that if these smaller hones go
out of business, the state will have to “start from scratch” and
deci de whether to have assisted living homes or change to the
| arger institutions. He noted that the state does not
differentiate between the two.

MR. FULLER replied that this is a good exanple of why the state
needs to carefully consider what is terned “assisted |living” and
what the requirenents are for a pioneer honme versus a privately
owned assisted living facility. He stated that the next
| egi sl ative session would provide a good opportunity to deal
wth these issues and see whether the changes are statutory or
regul atory.

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that this sanme scenario is occurring

regardi ng daycare. She related the story of a constituent who
renodeled her kitchen in order to neet the regulatory

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 31- Oct ober 25, 2006



requi renents; however, when she was finished, she was told that

there were additional requirenments that needed to be net. She
surmsed that if a package of information was made available to
busi ness owners, this mght be avoided. She opined that by

addi ng requirenents, the businesses have additional costs, which
may result in an inability to remain in business. Additionally,
the state does not allow these daycare providers to count
children who do not show up, even if it is due to the
irresponsibility of the parents.

1: 25: 24 PM

COMM SSI ONER JACKSON replied that these issues were also noted
during the certification and |icensing centralization process.
She said “If we have instances where things are not working for
good providers that need to be operating, then we’'d sure
appreci ate having specifics, so we can look into those and see
what we can do to help them ... It’s about being sure we’ ve got
appropriate providers being supported in doing what they're
doi ng.”

1: 26: 03 PM

MR. FULLER returned to his presentation, stating that the
departnent commissioned a long-term care study by Public

Consul ting Group (PCG. Thi s st udy cont ai ns many
recommendat i ons. In addition, Senate Finance conm ssioned a
separate RFP to |look at the entire Medicaid program and is due
to the legislature in February. He surmised that this would

contai ned significant reconmendations in ternms of changes to the
| ong-term care system He stated that he does not feel nore
studi es are needed, but that the information on hand needs to be
di scussed.

MR. FULLER went on to discuss the transition. He said that this
will take tine. The providers will need tinme to make changes,
and reinbursement nethods wll need to change in order to
appropriately reinburse for the new system Addi tionally,
clients will need tine to readjust. He opined that sone
i ndividuals do not |ike change, therefore it needs to be done
t houghtful | y. The role and training needs of caregivers nmay
change, he said, particularly if electronics are used. The
state will also need to make changes to adjust. The state, he
said, has a responsibility to have significant oversight to
ensure that nothing is going wong. He expressed hope that
during the next legislative session, the philosophy of long term
care wll be discussed. He said:

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 32- Oct ober 25, 2006



Wat’s the states role, here? | mean, there’'s the
Medicaid program that can finance a fairly broad
array, but what’'s the state’'s philosophy for the

Medi caid progran? And, | just want to throw out-that
you could view our Jlong-term care system as ful
enpl oynent for everyone. Just ignore, conpletely,

that it's taking care of people — of the frail and the
elderly — you could view it as a conplete enploynent
system for the state. Because you could set it up to
enploy lots of caregivers. | don't think we want to
do that, but we need to have that discussion, | think.
And then, the paranmeters around aging and place.
Addi tional, new supports that the state should provide
or wants to provide, to keep soneone living with that
daughter or daughter-in-law an extra few nonths.
Because, bottom line, those are the primary caregivers
in our current system Not hing to do with the state,
just the famly stepping up and taking care of those
f ol ks.

CHAIR WLSON said “If we had an inconme tax, we could give them a
break on their income tax.”

MR. FULLER opined that the state has nmany ways to support
famlies in order to keep the elderly at home |onger, which
could be cost-effective if properly put together. He went on to
say that this also relates to personal responsibility. In
regard to those individuals who nove to Alaska later in life and
run out of personal insurance, he questioned whether it is the
state’s responsibility to subsidize this. He pointed out that
services provided to Alaska Natives by tribal heal th
corporations are federally funded, adding that there has been
di scussion with tribal health corporations regarding what m ght
be done in the future to neet the needs of nmenbers. This would
be funded by general fund savings, and is nore “culturally
appropriate.” He stated that he is looking forward to working
with the legislature and the governor to “nobve this forward,”
adding that “failing to do [sonething] is not acceptable.”

1: 32: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said that he |ooks forward to addressing
t hese issues, and agreed that a goal, nethod, and phil osophy are
needed. He said “unless we have those, we’'re just seeing
problenms and trying to throw a band aid at it, but it doesn't
get to the conplexity.”

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 33- Oct ober 25, 2006



1: 33: 33 PM
COW SSI ONER JACKSON sai d:

It’s not an easy process, it's easier to talk about
ot her  things, heal t hcare-dealing wth access and
quality, and costs is not going to get easier as tine
goes on. And a lot of things we haven't even touched
on today, that you know are |oomng.... But | do
think, that if we look at things, as Alaskans, in a
new way, Wwe can conme up with some solutions that wll
work here, regardless of what happens with Medicare
and Medi cai d.

COWM SSI ONER JACKSON went on to say that it is inportant to
continue to stay involved, in order to continue the discussions.
She urged the nenbers’ to becone nore famliar with the m ssions
and neasures, and hold the departnent accountable when these do
not nmake sense or need to be “tweaked.” In addition, she
guestioned what lens wll be used for spending general fund
dollars, and said “how do we honor people for giving sonething
up to come together in partnerships, when in fact, it nay not be
in their individual business’ best interest?”

CHAIR WLSON stated that she plans on having joint neetings in
t he future.

COMM SSI ONER JACKSON, in regard to higher risk areas, encouraged
the nenbers’ to consider getting the comunities involved in
finding an answer to the problem She pointed out that one
answer may be a pilot program such as the Famly Centered
Services pilot prograns. She went on to say:

As we work through this process, this commttee has
taken a leadership role in dealing with healthcare.
And the departnent is trying to do that in small ways,
as well, everything from trying to nake sure our
buil dings are snoke-free at the state level ... to
working with issues of obesity and diabetes down the
road. So, | thank you for that, and | encourage you
to continue it, all of you who nmay be here...

1: 36: 50 PM

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 34- Oct ober 25, 2006



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what it would take for a pilot
project that gives out vitamns to a specific region, in order
to gather data that would show positive results.

COM SSI ONER JACKSON replied that this is a good idea, and
offered to look into this and cone back with a response.

CHAIR WLSON commented that this mght be a good preventative
nmeasur e.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opined that it is inportant to |look at it
and see if it solves broader community problens, in addition to
the nore specific issues discussed earlier. He noted that there
are additional details to consider.

CHAIR WLSON added that there would be different needs for
children and adul ts.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON opi ned that purchasing a high quantity [of
vitamns] in order to have a pilot project may “have sone
benefit.”

1:41:16 PM

CHAIR WLSON stated that the next neeting will pull all the
issues of the past few nonths together. The neeting is
schedul ed to occur on Novenber 8, 2006.

1:47:40 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Commttee neeting
was adjourned at 1:48 p. m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 35- Oct ober 25, 2006



